MINUTES CITY OF DARIEN PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING January 19, 2022

PRESENT: Lou Mallers – Chairperson, Robert Erickson, Bryan Gay, Shari Gillespie,

Julie Kasprowicz, Brian Liedtke, Ralph Stompanato

ABSENT: Hilda Gonzalez

OTHERS: Jordan Yanke - City Planner, Chris Jackson

Chairperson Lou Mallers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom. Staff was present at the Darien City Hall, Council Chambers, 1702 Plainfield Road, Darien, Illinois. Chairperson Mallers declared a quorum present and swore in the audience members wishing to present public testimony.

REGULAR MEETING/OLD BUSINESS:

A. Public Hearing – PZC2021-07 (CONTINUED FROM 12/15/2021)
1414 Sequoia Lane – Variations
Petitioner Anthony Maggiore seeks approval for Variations to City Code
Section 5A7-2-6 (A) and Section 5A-5-9-2 (A)(2)(b)(1) of the Zoning
Ordinance. The petition specifically requests to allow for an already
constructed patio/terrace (i.e., platform) and hot tub to remain in their
current location on the subject property. Property is located within the
R-2 Single-Family Residence Zoning District and the Variation requests
are to the following standards in the City of Darien Zoning Ordinance:

1) Section 5A-7-2-6 (A):

Variation request to reduce the required rear yard setback (patio/terrace).

Variation request to reduce the required interior side yard setback (patio/terrace).

2) Section 5A-5-9-2 (A)(2)(b)(1):

Variation request to reduce the accessory structure setback requirements and to permit an accessory structure within a platted easement (hot tub).

Mr. Jordan Yanke, City Planner provided a brief overview for the Commissioners who were not present at the last meeting. He reported that the subject property was platted in 1956 and is part of the Brookhaven Manor Subdivision. He reported that the parcel was improved with a single-family residence, detached garage, shed, patio/terrace (i.e., platform), and hot tub. He further reported that the patio/terrace and hot tub were constructed and installed without issuance of a building permit.

Mr. Yanke reported that he met with the petitioner, Mr. Anthony Maggiore and provided the PZC with site photos and overall measurements. He reported that at the last hearing that the Committee's concerns were setting a precedent and that each and every variation that is submitted should be treated independently and that just because an approval was granted for one resident doesn't automatically approve another.

The petitioner, Mr. Anthony Maggiore apologized again for not following procedure. He stated that he understood the concerns from the PZC and their resistance to approving the variations and that precedence was a concern. He stated that his property is unique and that they carefully placed the patio/terrace and hot tub in the best location in the yard.

There was some discussion from the Committee members regarding the distance between the patio and fence and if the back fence is located outside of the lot line.

The petitioner stated that he believed there was 4-5" between the patio and the fence but that he would have to measure.

Mr. Yanke reported that staff will work with the petitioner to verify the North property line.

There was some discussion regarding the fence.

The petitioner stated that he has fence on all three sides but that the fence in the rear aligns with the other neighbors on both sides.

Commissioner Shari Gillespie questioned where the hot tub water would drain.

The petitioner reported that the hot tub was installed by a professional plumber and that the hot tub does not have to be drained but that the drain is connected to the existing line.

Commissioner Gay stated that he did not have any issues and that the placement is in the least offensive location.

Commissioner Erickson questioned the overhead lines being a few feet behind the property line and if the utility company needs to get to the utilities.

Mr. Yanke reported that the zoning needs to be approved first. He stated that if the utility company needs to get to the utilities that they would have to rip the structure out.

Commissioner Kasprowicz questioned the footings and if they would be inspected.

Mr. Yanke reported that the consultant will do the typical inspection once zoning is approved.

The petitioner stated that he would comply with the inspector's findings. He further stated that he believed that there was a Gazebo there before.

Commissioner Kasprowicz stated that she would have a hard time approving this if the petitioner went the proper route.

Commissioner Stompanato agreed with Commissioner Kasprowicz but stated that no utilities underground in the easement and the cost involved that he would have no issues.

Commissioner Liedtke stated that his perspective is unchanged from the previous meeting and that the location is the best place on the lot. He stated that the situation is very unique, and that the homeowner assumes all risk.

Commissioner Erickson stated that the existing fence lines up with the neighbors and that the homeowner is following what is there.

There was no one in the audience wishing to present public comment.

Commissioner Liedtke made a motion, and it was seconded by Commissioner Gay approval of PZC 2021-07 1414 Sequoia Lane –Variations to City Code Section 5A7-2-6 (A) and Section 5A-5-9-2 (A)(2)(b)(1) of the Zoning Ordinance to allow for an already constructed patio/terrace (i.e., platform) and hot tub to remain in their current location on the subject property. Property is located within the R-2 Single-Family Residence Zoning District and the Variation requests are to the following standards in the City of Darien Zoning Ordinance with the following conditions:

- 1) The City's Architectural/Building Code Consultant grants approval for the patio/terrace and hot tub structures.
- 2) The patio/terrace and hot tub structures are confirmed and/or altered to be located entirely within the subject property's northern and eastern boundary lines.

Upon roll call vote, THE MOTION CARRIED 6-1. Commissioner Kasprowicz voted Nay.

Mr. Yanke reported that this would be forwarded to the Municipal Services Committee on Monday, January 24th at 7:00 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING – NEW BUSINESS

A. PZC Discussion Item – Evaluate/Update Key Development Areas (Reference Existing List of Key Development Areas in Packet

Mr. Jordan Yanke, City Planner reported that the City is making progress with the Economic Development Committee to reevaluate the Key Development Areas with input from the PZC to create a new document.

He reported on the following:

<u>Key Development Area #1</u>: Shopping District -EDC recommended no change. PZC recommended no change. Commissioner Liedtke stated that the area needs to be updated and modernized and that there needs to be a plan and a vision.

Commissioner Gay stated that the City needs a partner and that Mr. Manos has been working with the City.

Commissioner Gillespie stated that Brookhaven is an eyesore and that the parking lot is hard to navigate.

<u>Key Development Area #2</u>: Southwest corner of 75th and Lyman (former Fire Station) EDC recommended to keep in place for any opportunity for redevelopment. PZC recommended to extend it to the property to the west that was annexed.

<u>Key Development Area #3</u>: East side of Lemont Road between 75th Street and Woodmere Townhomes. EDC recommended to remove from list. PZC recommended the same.

<u>Key Development Area #4</u>: Northwest corner of Plainfield Road and Clarendon Hills Road including Darien Community Park, Hinsdale South High School Campus, Tri-State Fire District Station, Indian Prairie and Sportsplex. EDC recommended to expand the property to the west where the library is located. PZC recommended also adding the empty lot.

<u>Key Development Area #5</u>: South of I-55 east of Cass Avenue. EDC recommended making it single family. PZC recommended the same.

<u>Key Development Area #6</u>: Northeast corner of I-55 and Lemont Road interchange – EDC recommended to keep the area. PZC recommended the same.

<u>Key Development Area #7</u>: Southwest quadrant of Lemont Road and 87th Street. EDC recommended to expand to the North at Lemont and 87th Street. PZC recommended the same.

Mr. Yanke reported on the following Non-Key Development Areas:

A and B: EDC recommended to remove the already developed area. PZC recommended the same.

- C EDC recommended to remove the already developed area. PZC recommended to check out the area underdeveloped.
- D EDC recommended to remove. PZC recommended the same.
- E EDC recommended to remove. PZC recommended the same.

- F EDC recommended no change. PZC recommended the same.
- G FDC recommended to remove. P7C recommended the same.
- H EDC recommended no change. PZC recommended the same.
- I EDC recommended to remove. PZC recommended the same.
- J/K EDC recommended to keep on the list. Hotel that was built may lend itself to build something in the area. PZC recommended the same.
- L EDC recommended to keep on the list no significant change. PZC recommended the same.
- M EDC recommended to keep on the list. PZC recommended the same.
- N EDC recommended to remove. PZC recommended the same.

There was significant discussion regarding the City working with the County to building something for the large biking community in the area.

STAFF UPDATES & CORRESPONDENCE

Mr. Yanke introduced Mr. Chris Jackson who will be joining the PZC.

Mr. Yanke reported that Commissioner Gonzalez asked for Code Enforcement procedures. He reported that the Council receives monthly reports and that he would make it available to the PZC. He further reported that he would invite the Code Enforcement Officer to a future meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Gay made a motion, and it was seconded by Commissioner Kasprowicz to approve the December 15, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes.

Upon voice vote, THE MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

NEXT MEETING

Mr. Jordan Yanke announced that the next meeting scheduled for Wednesday, February 2, 2022, may be cancelled.

PUBLIC COMMENTS (On any topic related to planning and zoning)

There was no one in the audience wishing to present public comment.

ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the Commission, Commissioner Stompanato made a motion, and it was seconded by Commissioner Gillespie. Upon voice vote, THE MOTION CARRIED unanimously, and the meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m.

Elizabeth Lahey	Lou Mallers	
Secretary	Chairperson	